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Hearing commenced at 10.02 am

MIDFORD, MRS SUZANNE
Clinical Psychologist/Approved Counsellor, Perth Psychological Services,
sworn and examined:

RODINO, MSIOLANDA
Clinical Psychologist/Approved Infertility Counsellor,
sworn and examined:

CLISSA, MSANTONIA
Approved Counsellor/Social Worker,
sworn and examined:

CHAIR: On behalf of the committee | welcome you to theeting. Before we begin, | ask you to
take either the oath or the affirmation.

[Witnesses took the oath or affirmation.]
CHAIR: Please state your full name and the capacityhichvyou appear before the committee.
MrsMidford: My name is Suzanne Midford.

Mrs Midford: | appear before this committee in the capacity alinical psychologist/ approved
counsellor and a member of a group of approvedsmilors under the act.

CHAIR: Thank you.

Ms Rodino: My name is lolanda Rodino. | present to this cattae in the capacity of clinical
psychologist and approved infertility counselloromonsults to several clinics.

CHAIR: Thank you.
Ms Clissa: Antonia Clissa. | appear today as an approvedselior under the HRT act.

CHAIR: Thank you. You will have signed a document estittinformation for Withesses”. Have
you read and understood that document?

The Witnesses: Yes.

CHAIR: These proceedings are being recorded by Han&aténscript of your evidence will be
provided to you. To assist the committee and Hahgaease quote the full title of any document
you refer to during the course of this hearingth& record. Please be aware of the microphones and
try to talk into them. Ensure that you do not cotleem with papers or make noise near them. |
remind you that your transcript will become a nmatte the public record. If for some reason you
wish to make a confidential statement during toggy’oceedings, you should request that the
evidence be taken in closed session. If the coreengrants your request, any public and media in
attendance will be excluded from the hearing. Rleaste that until such time as the transcript of
your public evidence is finalised, it should not bade public. | advise you that premature
publication or disclosure of public evidence mapstdute a contempt of Parliament and may mean
that material published or disclosed is not sulje@arliamentary privilege.

We have a number of questions that we will ask t@i are based on the submission you have
made to the committee. Thank you; we have recdivaidsubmission. Before | do that, | invite each
of you, if you wish, to make an opening statementhe committee. If you prefer, we will just go
straight to the questions.
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Mrs Midford: | was going to speak briefly to a few issues befwe answer, happily, your
guestions. First of all | would like to say thattAnia, lolanda and | are all approved counsellors
under the act, as you have heard, and we havadidiinect experience in working with consumers,
donors, recipients, children—including surrogacit.&k us have also been involved in considering
these issues over many years. We have discussedithi our broader group, and our experience
individually is at least 12 years and more, so wehe to this with a lot of understanding and
thought of this very complex issue. We represemr@aup of mental health professionals who
cannot, obviously, all be here today. In fact, tigabup comprises a majority of the clinic
counsellors and we have substantial agreementeohasic tenets of our submission, which is that
it is important that the best interests of thedtlhite paramount and that harm minimisation needs to
be looked at.

We have, as a professional group, always had coscabout surrogacy arrangements. We
acknowledge that people have a strong biologicairéeto have their own children and in the

past—and indeed in the present—many have resateddrmal arrangements in the community,

which leave everyone, the children in particulastyemely vulnerable. In relation to that we draw

your attention to the well-known Re Evelyn caseiolwh was personally involved—as a withess—
and considerably involved in that case. It is int@ot to state here that that caused a pivotal ahang
in my thinking on surrogacy and | am happy to désctinat later, if that is of relevance to you.

The first thing we would like to add to our subnussis that we would really encourage the
committee to look at endorsing—we endorse the ltiye framework, which enable surrogacy
arrangements to be carried out within highly regadaand prescribed parameters. We believe it is
in the best interests of all the parties, partidylthe unborn child. We strongly recommend that th
paramount interests of the child to be born andhien minimisation approach form the basic
underpinning of the legislation. We would like toggest that this intent be clearly outlined in a
preamble to the legislation.

We believe that the strengths of the proposed|&@ms is the focus on subsidiary legislation; that

is, the directions on the preparation and assedspreicess, because that provides a view to
reducing the potential harm to all the parties,imgparticularly the child to be born. The group

agrees with the proposed details of the assessprexess being outlined in the subsidiary

legislation; that is, the directions that have apanied this and that they are consistent with the
current directions under the Human Reproductivehiielbgy Act 1991.

Before | finish, | would like to raise a few connerand highlight them. The first one is the

paramount interest of the child. We strongly bediethat the best interests of the child are
paramount and as such, the group that we represemgly advocates that there be a genetic
relationship with at least one arranged parentkWév that currently embryo donation is permitted

under the Human Reproductive Technology Act 19Iwaiconsider that the added complexity of

surrogacy where a child could potentially be relate four sets of parents—arranged parents, birth
parents, egg donor and sperm donor—not to be ipdhemount best interests of the child.

The second issue we would like to raise is in r@garthe surrogate or the birth mother. We believe
it is imperative that the surrogate be able to ¢neeinformed consent freely and without coercion.
To that end we have serious concerns that an 1I8ejgds expected to do this; therefore, we
recommend that the birth mother, to be a surrogatest have a live child and preferably have
completed her family before she is considered pstantial surrogate. We are not suggesting an
age change but that. We also recommend that wherespgective surrogate has not completed her
family or has suffered a maternal loss, that sheeguired to undertake a psychiatric assessment
because this is known to be a potential risk.

In terms of the reasonable expenses to be paidetsudrrogate, as well as the medical expenses
being covered, we recommend that mental healthresgseneed to be included and that these need
to be included for up to 12 months post-natally.
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[10.10 am]

It is recognised that it is not always possibleptedict future outcomes even with the best
preparation and the best assessment.

The next issue we would like to raise is the unexdability of the surrogacy arrangement. Our
group endorses the unenforceability of the surrpgacangement for the following reasons. The
first is that we are very concerned with the comifncation of children; we do not believe that that
Is in any way good. The second is that we belibe¢ there needs to be protection for the surrogate
or the birth mother because surrogacy is a comgtelkunusual life experience, and it is not always
possible to predict how the birth mother will resgopostnatally. It is also really important to
recognise that it provides protection for the ramp couple. The surrogacy arrangements should
not be enforceable for either the birth parent reththe surrogate—or for the recipient couple.

We have information which has been obtained froengtirrogacy parenting centre in the United
States, which has now been going for well over @8ry. The statistic that we obtained from them
was that in 900 cases only three had broken domah,irmall, they related to the recipient couple.
We believe it is really important in preparatiom foth the surrogate and for the recipient couple
that they be aware of the unenforceability of the@gacy arrangement. To that end, it is vital that
there be very good preparation available for theeil before they start producing a child.

The next issue is parentage orders. We recommexidhi transfer of parentage should only be
granted following the recommendations of the chégresentative who has considered fully the
paramount interests of the child. There needs ta person nominated to be a child representative
for surrogacy at the time of the application fog trarentage orders.

The next concern we have is an educative process.rdfommend information sessions for
prospective parties interested in surrogacy. Weebelthat these sessions should be conducted by
the WA Reproductive Technology Council throughoatleyear, and that they should be similar to
the information sessions which are currently offiei@ fostering and adoption; they are carried out
by the Department for Child Protection, as it isviknown. This is really important in providing
people with early information and the opportundyget accurate and reliable information.

Our final point—you will be pleased to know—is thaé would like to strongly recommend that
there be a review of the surrogacy legislationve fears, following the implementation of the act,
because of the extremely emotional and controveratare of the issues involved. Thank you.

CHAIR: Thank you. I will move now to the questions theg have prepared for you. Firstly, your

submission recommends assessment by external spiaf@l, independent parties. Can you just
advise the committee if counselling is currentlp\pded on this basis for IVF clients? In other

words, is it consistent with requirements underekisting HRT directions?

MsClissa: So, the question is about independent partiesesasment by independent parties?

CHAIR: Yes; you are recommending assessment by extgrraessional, independent parties.
We are asking if counselling is already providedtmat basis for IVF clients.

Ms Clissa: Currently, counselling for IVF patients is cadiout by the clinic councillor. What we
are recommending is that it actually be an indepahédxternal party not employed by the clinic; so
it is actually an independent psychometric assessrog a clinical psychologist who is not
employed by the clinic.

MsRodino: Could | add to that?
CHAIR: Yes.

Ms Rodino: It does not preclude the clinic councillor fromaquesting a second opinion or
additional assessment outside of the clinic.

CHAIR: Currently?
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MsClissa: Currently, yes.

MsRodino: Currently. So it does not preclude it. It degeon —
CHAIR: Does that happen?

MsRodino: It can, yes.

MrsMidford: Not very often.

CHAIR: Does it happen very often?

MsClissa: Not very often, no.

Ms Rodino: Not often; it is not standard practice but atds you might require a second opinion
and it is not precluded—the counsellor is not préet from doing that.

Ms Clissa: What we are recommending here is that it is detely separate; that there is not any
element of coercion. Also, not all of the cliniemploy people who would be able to give that
psychometric testing.

CHAIR: What are your reasons for recommending that?

Mrs Midford: It is objective; so that there is no confusian éither the people involved—that
there is collusion, well, not collusion, that théenot any pressure on them to come to a particula
conclusion—and also so that you can have peoplehakie developed a particular expertise.

Ms Rodino: The other point | was going to make is that wipatients actually present to a
clinic—so, if they are already, almost, like on tludlercoaster of the clinic experience—having
external assessment and recommendations are veoytant to give an independent perspective for
that patient or for all patients who actually pras&o, it is quite useful and, | think, paramotmnt
actually have independent assessments—which ate sgparate from the exchange of gametes,
which would take place in surrogacy—to the actuahdgfer to a third party as a surrogate mother.
So, you certainly need someone quite separatetadtual IVF clinic experience as well.

Hon PETER COLLIER: Who would constitute the professional indepemndsgencies? Who
would you be referring to?

[10.20 am]
Hon PETER COLLIER: So would there be a register? What would yolobking at?

Ms Rodino: Of clinical psychologists? Yes, | guess theraildde a need to establish a particular
register of clinical psychologists who have expmertin the area of reproductive health. That is
certainly something | would have in mind.

Hon PETER COLLIER: Can you think of anyone other than clinical pslogists?

Mrs Midford: Because of the nature of the assessment, wedwequire a clinical psychologist,
and then a psychiatrist. The approved list of celioass would be the logical list, and to have
people identified on that list who are suitableefhare more people on that list who are not clinic
counsellors than there are clinic counsellors. &@hare a lot of counsellors in the community
providing fertility counselling who are not clinamunsellors, and the thrust in this state has bzen
encourage that, so that people have an alternakive.reality is that that does not happen very
often, and most people actually use the clinic sellars, which is fine, but we have always
believed that it is really important that peoplevdat least a potential choice. We are very lucky
that a number of people have been prepared, ewvaglhthey do not get a lot of work from it, to
remain on that list and maintain their expertiskilevremaining in the community.

Ms Clissa: | just wanted to add to the comments about titependent assessment. It would
include the clinical psychologist to provide theygsometric testing. The feedback from our
overseas and interstate colleagues is that itallyréamportant for people to have an objective
measure, in which they are actually put throughatieby of tests. If they are rejected, there are
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specific reasons for it. That would include therggate and the recipient. It would also include the
clinic counsellor giving the psychosocial perspestiwhich currently happens. It would just be
another level of independence, well recognisedh@ ART community as a benchmark for
assessing the sorts of qualities that people woeddl to undertake such a complex program.

Hon KATE DOUST: Who determines and maintains this list?

Mrs Midford: The Reproductive Technology Council reviews ¢hiteria and we insist on people
maintaining their currency, so anyone who is on tish must regularly attend training sessions to
keep their knowledge base up. That has developedtowe, but that is how it is now. There are
specific criteria, and they have to maintain tloeirrency.

CHAIR: Your submission also recommends a mandatoryirgpolff period for all parties. At
what stage should this occur, and how long shcwdcboling-off period be? Is there any research
to support that recommendation that you can pa@ribowards?

Ms Clissa: A lot of this is based on what is currently ttese with patients who are using donated
gametes—donated egg, embryos or sperm. The cuwsiteiation under the legislation applies in
cases of known donation only, and of course suopgarties all know each other. Because of the
complexity of surrogacy, the group feels that itaally important that, after all the assessment an
selection had been done, there is an opportunitglfparties to have a time of reflecting in orter
prevent any level of coercion. We know that, paftady when the birth mother is likely to be
someone within a family, that can be very subtlattipularly if there is an age and power
relationship. There can be very subtle coercionseBaon our clinical experience with known
donation we have made this recommendation for &rgpoff period. We have all had experiences
in which initially all the parties absolutely detésving the cooling-off period because they want t
get ahead and have this child, and we are in thg saying that they must have this cooling-off
period. | particularly remember one case in whilthhe parties were friends, and wanted to get on
with it. They were so angry that we made them W&fithin the three months that they had to wait,
they came back and said “Our relationship has brakevn; there is no way we can go ahead with
this.” Apparently, during that time, the partietkéal to their extended families, not just to each
other. The reactions they got from the extendedlyaimdicated that this was not going to work,
and they had concerns about that. In fact, theyedaack and thanked us for not listening to them in
the first instance. Part of what you are dealinthwn issues of assisted reproductive technology is
that people have this very strong drive to havhil cand when they have to use non-conventional
methods of having a child, they are still focussedwanting the child, but when you go into the
more complex areas, they do not even know themsdioay they are going to respond, and how
their families are going to respond. They haveawoisidered all the issues, and that is what | think
the counsellors, doctors and the psychometricrigssi about. It is about ensuring that people have
all the information intellectually and also emotidig about themselves and what they and their
families can cope with. Often, you do not know hessayou are not there in that situation, and that
Is why we want to give them all time to ensure ttha$ is the right thing for them as much as
possible. It is not going to be perfect, but iteally a built-in mechanism for people to leave the
arrangement at that point, before there is a cli@tiause once there is a child — with the Re
Evelyn case, it went to the High Court, and it hasen a very difficult situation for everybody. gt i
based on our clinical experience, but others migidrit to add to that.

MrsMidford: | have been involved in a number of cases, tiolyithe Re Evelyn case, and some
of those have proceeded, but some of them hav@rooteded. The time they have had to think
about it after they have done the assessment, & \pkople have the opportunity to really think
through things and talk to people. It is importdrat that occurs before a child is created. If we a

talking about the child as being the primary persphe protected in this, and we are talking about
harm minimisation, then having a cooling-off perieda relatively simple way of ensuring that that
occurs for people. As far as | know, there is reeaech evidence, and it would only be post hoc,
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because it is not the kind of area that you caramithing forward; you need to go backwards.
Certainly, from the evidence we have had clinicalpere people have had time to consider it and
think about it, it has been successful. The Kirknsesters have had a very successful surrogacy
arrangement, but where it has been unsuccessfulkrew absolutely in the Re Evelyn case, if
those two couples had actually talked to each p#ret if they had actually discussed their différen
views of what was going to happen on the other sfdbe child being born, they would never have
proceeded with having that little girl. Nobody warhat little girl not to exist now, because she
does exist, but that case caused extraordinarytpdire child, to the recipient couple, the surtega
and the children on both sides of the family, andgroup is really very strong on trying to —

CHAIR: Are you suggesting that the cooling-off periagtars prior to the IVF procedure?
MrsMidford: Absolutely.

Hon SALLY TALBOT: That point you just made is really about the dfitgm of counselling,
rather than the cooling-off period, is it not?

Mrs Midford: Both—the counselling is very important, so tpabple actually understand what
each wants, but the cooling-off period is differdnhave been involved in cases where everyone
agrees it is a great idea, and they will do it.iggae is carried away with the enthusiasm of it and
then it stops for a period and everyone sits backthinks about it. That is when the doubts creep
in, and if the doubts creep in, it is much bettr it to stop before the child is created. That is
basically what we are saying.

[10.30 am]
Hon SALLY TALBOT: So your two points are related?

Ms Rodino: Yes. The reality is that even at a very basiellegxcluding the surrogacy situation,
people do change their minds. They have counseliind hopefully they gain the benefits of that
counselling. We then implement a mandatory cootiffgperiod, and we have a review with them,
and we find that people just do not come back.dy be that we have talked them out of it, or it
may be that they have thought more about the iskug<ither way it has been worthwhile in the
sense that it occurs prior to the creation of ampryo that is going to be used or transferred. So
people do change their minds after counselling.

Hon KATE DOUST: The directions provide for a three-month coolofgperiod. Is it your view
that that is sufficient, or should we be lookingwdtat they do in New South Wales, where they
have a six-month cooling-off period, or do you hamether specific period of time in mind?

Ms Clissa: We used to have a six-month cooling-off periodt the feedback from the clinic
counsellors was that they were saying that if yime geople six months, they will take six months,
and if you give them 12 months, they will take 12nths. They felt that three months actually
forced people to make a decision. So it was sixthmrand it was reduced to three months. We
have based that on consistency with what actudtiyady happens with known donations of
gametes or embryos.

Hon PETER COLLIER: So you are supportive of three months?

Ms Clissa: Yes, based on the feedback from the clinic cdiorse who felt that when people have
to make a decision, that was sufficient time.

MrsMidford: But that three months starts after they have gloroigh all of that process, so it is a
plus. Itis not part of the counselling or theesssnent period.

Hon KATE DOUST: Is there a cooling-off period for couples who arst using IVF processes
that are not connected with surrogacy?

Ms Clissa: Only when they are using donor gametes; thaf they are using donor eggs, donor
sperm or donor embryos.
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Hon KATE DOUST: In that case it is three months?

Ms Clissa: Only if there is a known component—that is, ifista known embryo donor or egg
donor—not if it is anonymous.

MrsMidford: It is six months if it is anonymous.
Hon KATE DOUST: But ifitis a straight IVF process —

Mrs Midford: Sorry. The six months is actually related to thmrantine period. It has changed
recently. That is why | am confused.

MsClissa: It is just for a known donation of eggs, spernembryos.

CHAIR: But couples who are unable to conceive and akirsg assistance do not need to wait for
three months?

Ms Clissa: No, because it does not require a third party.

Ms Rodino: For standard IVF procedures in a clinic, theredscooling-off period, because there is
no third party, so we just offer an introductorgsen. It is because we are moving to the area of
third-party reproduction that we actually have andwtory, and | feel very necessary, cooling-off
period.

Hon KATE DOUST: If that is the case and you feel so strongly altiwat, would it not be better to
have the cooling-off period defined clearly in {bgislation rather than just in the directionsjsas
currently proposed?

Ms Clissa: One of the reasons that we want it to be in ithections is the experience that we have
had with the directions under the HRT act. Foitanse, last year the cooling-off period was
changed from six months to three months. That wasiple only because it was in the directions. |
guess what we are saying is that because surraga®w for WA, our view is that some of these
things are going to be refined with time. If itilsthe main legislation, it always takes a longdi

to make any changes. We might find clinically tsat months is better than three months as a
cooling-off period for surrogacy, and we could tlaesk for the directions to be changed, otherwise
what will happen is that it will not be enforceabéd we will have a gap. It was about having
something that would be more responsive to whhggening in the community. That is why we
want some of the detail to be in the directiongase we find that what we have proposed is not
actually going to work.

Hon KATE DOUST: But these are not simply directions, are they® they enforceable?

Ms Clissa: Yes, they are enforceable. They are subsidiayiglition. That is why the clinics have
to abide by them.

CHAIR: But they are not disallowable, are they? Theyhinige subsidiary legislation, but they are
not disallowable instruments.

Hon KATE DOUST: No, they are not.

Ms Clissa: But they are enforceable. That is what we arengay

CHAIR: Yes, but they do not come before the Parliamsmegulations. They are just directions.
Ms Clissa: But they are gazetted directions.

CHAIR: But they are not disallowable. That is just atididion that we are making about
subsidiary legislation. There is subsidiary ledisla, which can still be disallowed by the
Parliament, and then there are directions, whichataequire any parliamentary scrutiny.

Hon SALLY TALBOT: When parties change their minds during the cgetiff period, which
parties change their minds? Is it both sides?

Ms Clissa: Yes, both sides.
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MrsMidford: It is absolutely both sides.

Ms Rodino: Yes. Even at the basic IVF level, sometimes #mpients change their minds and
sometimes the donors change their minds. Undesuhegacy legislation, any of the parties could
change their minds.

Mrs Midford: We believe that is the way it should be. Peopleutl know that that is their
opportunity to change their minds, and that pedplehange their minds. It needs to be normalised
that there are people who do not continue to gadchdth what they had planned to do because
they realise that there is something that they aahandle in the process and they need to bail out
of it. Sometimes people need help with that, beeansome instances it can be quite difficult to
say to people that they cannot do this any longeghey do not want to do this any longer. It is
really important that that is seen to be part ef phocess and that it is okay for people to change
their minds.

CHAIR: Can | just ask you to focus on the point of Katguestion? To me, what Kate is doing is
drawing attention to the lack of reference in tiiletb any notion of a cooling-off period or period

of reflection, or whatever we may term it. Your &es was that you would rather that that was in
the directions, because essentially it would themiore flexible and more responsive to the needs
and demands of the new procedure. | think the pafiihe question was do you think there is a
need for the Parliament to indicate in the billtttreere should be a period of reflection. The alctu
period might well be a matter for subsidiary legiigln, but at least there should be somethingen th
bill that says that the Parliament believes thath@se sorts of arrangements there should be a
period that will allow the parties to reflect on athhey are doing. Would you support that?

Hon KATE DOUST:I think that is very important, because the dimt could go the other way,
where a reference to a cooling-off period mighs@ame point—who is to say—be deleted totally
because there is nothing in the bill about thatenat

CHAIR: It might be deleted from the directions, witheaference to the Parliament. That is the
problem that we are grappling with.

Ms Clissa: So the amount of time should be detailed?
Hon KATE DOUST: Yes.

CHAIR: What Kate is putting is essentially that the Rankent would express an expectation that
the subsidiary legislation would provide for therijod.

MrsMidford: | am sure that our group would thoroughly endohnse.

CHAIR: Your submission recommends that, consistent thighAdoption Act, the birth mother be
given 28 days before having to decide whetherltoqeish the child. Can you expand upon that for
the committee? My second question is: should tles &#e the case if the surrogate is not a
biological parent of the child?

[10.40 am]
MrsMidford: It should happen in both cases.

Ms Clissa: The reason that we agree with a minimum amourtinoé is related to giving the
surrogate mother time to think about her decisifiar aagreeing nine months earlier to being a
surrogate and after having the baby. Surrogaegydemplex arrangement. It is a new experience
for women. They do not know how they will reacttving the child even though we have in place
all the mechanisms for minimising that. What we saging is that we want that to be consistent
with the Adoption Act so that surrogates have aisie?8 days to make their decision before
relinquishing the child. | have forgotten your glies.

CHAIR: | asked about biological linkage. You indicatbdttthere should not be any discrimination
on that basis.
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Ms Clissa: No. We need to acknowledge that carrying a childarrying a child regardless of
whether the woman is biologically or geneticallgkied to it. The nine months gestation must be
given acknowledgement. That is very, very important

Mrs Midford: A woman develops a relationship with her unbohiidc That is probably not
understood by anyone who has not carried a babyoman develops a relationship with a baby
when she is carrying it. The 28 days is a minimunoant of time that will allow the woman to
deal with the hormonal things that happen aftethbit was selected as the minimum time in
adoptions so that a woman could make a coheremdide@fter thinking about the issues clearly.

Hon SALLY TALBOT: You referred to “before having to decide to rqlirsh the baby”. Could a
woman decide within the 28 days?

MrsMidford: They cannot sign anything until after the 28 days
Ms Clissa: They could have decided, but they would not heigaed away.

Hon SALLY TALBOT: If there was an agreement with the arrangingrgarthat the baby would
be handed over on day one —

Ms Clissa: Yes, that is fine. The child can live with whorneev It is about the birth mother
deciding that that is what she wants to do. Thé&dahiay not necessarily be living with the birth
mother.

Mrs Midford: | remind you that in the 900 cases in the Uniakes, it was not the well-prepared
birth mother who changed her mind; rather, it wees riecipient couples who changed their mind.
Even though that is a small proportion, they wlaeednes who changed their minds.

CHAIR: Do you support the current provision of a 28-dagimum and a six-month maximum?
MsClissa: Yes.

CHAIR: You are okay with that?

MrsMidford: Yes.

MsClissa: Yes.

MsRodino: Yes.

CHAIR: In your opening statement you referred to a renendation in your submission about
there being a genetic relatedness to one arrarayedtp which is not a requirement in the bill. Why
have you made that recommendation? Can you poitbd @y research that might support that
proposition?

MrsMidford: To my knowledge there is not a lot of researcls@mogacy. From the work that has
been done in adoption and donations, we know tn@bgacy situations become very complicated
for children when they have more than—the standardngement for most children is that their
parents are their mum and dad who are their bickdgind social parents and they are all wrapped
up in one package. What has happened with adoptimh other things is that that has been
expanded and more people are involved. As thetgitudecomes more and more complicated, it
becomes more and more difficult for the child tpeavith it and for the other parties to cope with
it. Given the incredible complexity of surrogacydatine issues surrounding it, we are looking at
harm minimising and the best interests of the chl\ié are saying that a surrogacy that involves
one genetic parent minimises the harm to the dmild maximises the best interests of the child,
because the complexity for the child has been mdlutf you start to have too many people
involved as potential parents—I have done a lowvofk in the area of adoption over a number of
years and | have talked with those involved at tlengj have talked to relinquishing parents, the
adoptive parents and the offspring or the adoptaple. | have also had a lot of contact with
people involved in donation, which is a similar llifferent arrangement. In all of those cases,
people talked about the same sorts of emotionakgssthat is, their disconnectedness and their
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difficulty in understanding. If at least one genegparent is involved, we provide some kind of
underpinning of the stability of the child.

Ms Rodino: There is a concept called genealogical bewildetrtigat often comes about in donor-
related literature. It is about the child’s sen§édentity and who they belong to. Is it the perso
who donated the egg, the person who donated thiensfige person who gave birth to the child or
the recipient parents, who have been very loving@ 3trength of that argument comes from the
child’s perspective and from the terminology of galogical bewilderment. There are no children
who can give views on that.

Hon KATE DOUST: Last Saturdaylhe Australian ran a very interesting article in it%eekend
Inquirer section. It featured a young woman who was bora essult of a donation. She has very
strong views. In fact, she is opposed to the negwodhuctive technology legislation in Victoria
because of the difficulties she and others haveemapced trying to access information and
working through their identity issues.

Ms Clissa: This particular issue is one that we have stregglith because, as we outlined earlier,
embryo donation is permitted under the HRT act.e@ithat we want this legislation to put the
interest of the potential child at the front of Bxthing, we believe that it is in the best intesetWe
are concerned that if that is legislated, certa@ogbe would be excluded. That is always the
balance—that we could exclude potential people what to have children but who do not have
the genetic material to contribute. That is a camc&/e are trying to balance those interests with
the interests of the child being at the foremose. &k hearing more feedback from adult offspring
of donations who are voicing concerns about how there created. Given the fact that advocacy is
not fully available, we are trying to promote thiat the interests of children whilst fully
acknowledging that if the legislation does inclublat, it would exclude a number of people from
accessing surrogacy.

[10.50 am]

CHAIR: Your submission recommends that the birth mo#ieuld have one live child and have
completed her family. Can you expand on why youehaade that recommendation? Should this
be a requirement or a consideration taken intowadcoy the persons approving the IVF procedure
and the surrogacy arrangement?

Ms Rodino: A comment | would like to make about that parfi@cussue relates to the status of
maturity that, say, an 18-year-old would have, tr@ability for them to give full consent without
having had children. The bill says “to have hadrtht it does not use the phrase “live birth”. Tha
is a phrase | would be encouraging. We would wanoenan who has had a live birth, because
pregnancy loss will put the woman at risk of adeepsychological outcomes. We would also
encourage women to have completed their families.d&/ not know what kind of adverse reaction
may occur per pregnancy, both medically or emotignand whether this places the birth mother
at risk of things that she may not be aware sheoissenting to. It is about a true sense of
understanding this process, they have had a litle, bhey know what it is like to have a baby, they
know what the postnatal period is like, we know hivey responded during that postnatal period
and the attachments they formed with the child.ré&t& no point down the track, having completed
their family, being at risk of adverse medical ége'WWomen could lose their own uterus as a
surrogate. | believe a surrogate in the UK diedcadieart attack after giving birth. We want to
ensure that the birth mother herself has been prd@and cared for, her needs have been met, she is
aware of what she is doing and she has had a iitte BFoetal loss does put a woman at risk of
adverse mental outcome. It is not that she hasatmadh but that she has had a live birth, comglete
her family and knows what she wants and what skagsaging in.

Mrs Midford: And what she is giving up. It is really importdot her to know what she is giving
up, whether the child is her biological child oit.no
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Ms Rodino: The issue about the postnatal period tends tanblerestimated. There are risk factors
for any woman who goes through this within a relaghip or for someone else. The risk of
postnatal depression is 15 per cent and the riglsythosis is one in 500. These are adverse events
that occur within the first three to four weeks tppartum. That postnatal period is a very serious
period and to the best of her ability she needstav what she has, that she has completed a family
and what she may be giving up. It is about inforroedsent.

Ms Clissa: It concerns me that in the media and on the meterbeing a surrogate, a donor, is
simplified and glorified. It is an amazing gift, tome want to counter that by saying that it is foot
everybody, and we want there to be safeguards.l®eap be caught up in the hype of actually
wanting to help someone else. We also want to ertbat their own family or their own self is not
endangered in that process in any way.

Hon KATE DOUST: | just note the comments you have made about whatwould see as the
minimum requirements for a woman to be a surrogatech all sound very logical. Whilst it is
expressed in the directions, | cannot find anythingthe actual bill that refers to any age
requirements. Would you like to see something fidatiin the legislation to provide that certainty?

Ms Clissa: Perhaps we could add something at the back,igibibly criteria or a requirement that
women meet certain conditions in order for therbeaan appropriate surrogate. | am not sure what
wording we would have. That could work.

Mrs Midford: We have tended to rely on the directions becafiske need to be able to change
things to reflect changes, because things moveigily in this area in terms of certain techniques
and even the community. We agree that there neduks ¢ligibility criteria.

CHAIR: Can you explain what is involved in psychosopiaparation and psychometric testing?

Mrs Midford: Psychosocial preparation helps people to undatstxactly what surrogacy is in
terms of relationships, what it means to them psraon and what it means to their partner and their
children. There would be an overlap between theaedion for the surrogate and her partner and
children and the recipient couple but there wousb de some specific differences. We also talk
about the fact that it is not just about havindhédcand that is the end of it. With surrogacy, ave
talking about a child and, therefore, that goedasaver. The child is around for the rest of that
person’s life. It is important for them to understathe implications of that personally. It is
something that can be supported by material thegt éine given to read or attending seminars, but is
also really important for them to discuss issuetiwia counselling environment so they can raise
issues and where things that are of concern calisbassed.

The psychometric part of it is really to try to arsthat for people who have underlying psychosis
or other problems—perhaps cognitive ability—a raofidasic planks can be explored to ensure
that the person is capable of making an informemsan.

Ms Clissa: The thrust of the psychosocial preparation tlzgupens in IVF counselling consists of a
battery of questions in relation to surrogacy thstes issues for people. That may take threeusr fo
sessions, and that would be separate to the pswthontesting. It would involve all parties,
including children over the age of four. If the mgate has children or any party to the recipiest h
children, they would also be involved in the psysibmal preparation. It involves all the parties who
will potentially be affected in that family.

CHAIR: You said that that should be enforceable. Is ghetr to the procedure? When you say
enforceable, do you mean mandated?

MsClissa: Yes, it is mandatory counselling.
CHAIR: Would you envisage that that would occur priothat procedure?
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Mrs Midford: Yes, because people will drop out. That sort efchosocial preparation is
consistent with what happens with adoption, fosteand donor counselling. It is not different;sit i
just an extension of that.

Ms Rodino: Psychosocial preparation raises issues thataatles or participants had not really
thought about. They say, “We never thought aboat.'thThey are very standard questions that
focus on the relationship issues that Sue mentioned

Hon PETER COLLIER: Presumably, it will be done prior to the threentiocooling-off period.

Ms Clissa: Well and truly. That is why we recommend the edion sessions. If anyone is ever
interested in surrogacy, they can come along andaye “This is what's going to be involved if
you want to go down this track.” It is a bit likehat happens with fostering when people go to so
many sessions and interviews. People know welltaunlg beforehand and they are not surprised
when they arrive at a clinic and say they wantdalsurrogate. They know what is involved. That
could take 12 or 18 months.

CHAIR: You are not advocating that there be any timéatf?
Ms Clissa: No, not at this stage.
CHAIR: That will be quite variable?

Ms Clissa: It is going to be variable. Also, with people\ga#ability and time, it will often drag out
rather than be very brief.

CHAIR: There is a balance about giving people adequpp®rtunity to learn and reflect as
opposed to just holding them up.

[11.00 am]
Ms Clissa: Absolutely, yes.

Ms Rodino: Yes, so if people want to proceed quickly, thap go through that process very fast,
but then they have the three-month cooling-off quekri

CHAIR: What is involved in implications counselling?

Ms Rodino: Implications counselling is a form of counsellititat occurs in all of your infertility
clinics when you have either standard IVF or domedated counselling sessions. The kinds of
guestions that might occur just offhand—usuallyal/én a form that gives me probe questions—it
includes looking at how long they have thought akmursuing the kind of treatment, whom they
have talked to about this treatment, what issueg thay present with in regard to the decisions
regarding the treatment. It talks about some legalects that we draw from the relevant acts in
regard to their treatments. We talk about very muoportantly, in these sessions the best interests
of the child, because the counsellor representsathget unborn child, particularly in donor cases,
and have they thought about that unborn child aw tthey thought about the legislation by way of
where information is kept by way of registries; @ahey thought how they might tell the child
about the special circumstances of the concep8onthere are a lot of questions that hopefully
raise more questions from them, so that when thaye your rooms, if you feel you have done your
job well, it is that they can leave with a littlét Imnore informed consent about the process and
journey that they are about to enter. It is a \v@rgountable way of working with your patients,
because what you do not want them to say is, “WieHone told me | might have a psychological
reaction to this.”

MrsMidford: We would also include in surrogacy the parenangngements and what was going
to happen on the other side. If | can mention teeERelyn case to you in that context, that broke
down really because the two couples were very dhiehefore the child was born. They had a great
arrangement. They lived in separate cities, but thet and had holidays together. They were very
close. The surrogate mother volunteered to be rgate for her friend because she was sad that
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she did not have a child. She did actually haveadwopted child, but she did not have her own
biological child, and so she volunteered to beguegogate mother, including the genetic mother
because the woman was infertile, but to use hdrdngs sperm. So she went into it—the surrogate
| am talking about—believing it was going to britlgem together, that they would have a
wonderful, close relationship, that it would makeeit relationship even more wonderful and
magical, and she was really quite carried away wWith emotional potential of this arrangement;
that they were going to have this wonderful, clésmily where everything would be just really
beautiful. The recipient couple were a very nioepe, very reasonable. They wanted to have a
child. They were delighted that this woman was greg to provide them with the opportunity to
have their child, but they wanted to be left alofbey actually wanted to have the child by
themselves. They were happy to meet for holidalys,they had already been doing with the other
family, but they just wanted to get on with beimg fparents, and that is fundamentally where the
clash came. Now, if those couples had actuallyethlto each other and discussed it in a way
whereby they could have discussed a parenting onder that would work, they would never have
proceeded with that.

Hon SALLY TALBOT: Can you just remind us what the genetic relatiggeswere?

Mrs Midford: The child was the biological child of the surrtgand of the recipient father, and
they were both excellent parents. Fundamentallyarite down to which family was going to be the
most open, and the judge decided that the famdywas going to be the most open was in fact the
surrogate’s family. However, it was a very sad c& @ me, | was very negative about surrogacy
until that time. After that case, in particular, miole view changed, because it became really clear
to me that surrogacy legislation was really impatitdoecause the only way that you could help
people to avoid those kinds of things was by hawangrescribed pathway by which they could
actually examine and be—I want to say “forced” lus not right—but a process that actually
facilitated them considering very important issuescause they are for-life issues; they are not
about just giving birth to a child. It is for life.

CHAIR: The last couple of questions have focused onstypepreparations and testing and
counselling. Can you just outline to the committee different stages that you envisage, whether or
not each and every one of the surrogacy cases Vibeutdquired to go through each stage and what
sort of minimum requirements we would be contenipdptfor those stages of preparation of
everyone involved?

Ms Clissa: So, what minimum requirements —
CHAIR: What counselling, what preparation of personsived would you require?

Ms Clissa: We agree that, in every case, everybody wouldcehavgo through the psychosocial
preparation, would have to seek independent legake. For the surrogate, she would obviously
need to seek medical—that is a very important tre, she is actually able to do this. In all cases,
we would also do psychometric testing. The onlyt gaat would be optional would be if the woman
had not formed her family and she had suffered matdoss—or had not finalised her family,
rather. In those cases, we would recommend a fugikgchiatric assessment. The psychiatric
assessment would not be compulsory for everybodlyapart from that it is a standard procedure,
as currently happens with, | guess, all the ARTW.ad#@ are just having IVF without any donor, you
go one way. If you are having IVF with a donor,rthes a pathway, and if you are just doing donor
without IVF, there is another pathway. So it idansglardised sort of practice, what is expected once
you go to a clinic. With the surrogacy, those assesits would be sent—because they are
benchmarks, certainly nationally and internationalhat happens. However, several of our
approved counsellors have provided surrogacy asesds for interstate cases, where they have
actually been Western Australian applicants ordessis, and they have actually done the
psychometric or the psychosocial—in fact, | thiSkie, you have done some of those.

MrsMidford: Yes, | have done them.
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Ms Clissa: There might be slight variations, but there igemeral agreement of a pathway for all
surrogates and recipients to go through, as wethadegal and the medical again to ensure that
people are safeguarded. | guess the other thitigatswe certainly support there being a review
panel that is an independent review panel. | thinat the directions currently say that that is¢o b
set up by the clinic. Again, the idea of that itsure independence and that in fact the pathsvay i
followed and that there are reports for that pameéview.

Hon PETER COLLIER: You mentioned a benchmark; you said that thera lenchmark. |
presume that once you get to that benchmark, thathien the three-month cooling-off period
commences. Is that what occurs, or what you engisagld occur?

Ms Clissa: The three-month cooling-off period would happeaiyadf they are going to proceed with
the surrogacy; they have got to the point wherg #ve going to proceed, and then they have the
cooling-off period.

Hon PETER COLLIER: Presuming you have come along, the three-morghngpoff period will
not commence when you first walk through the dddhe clinic, obviously —

Ms Clissa: No.

Hon PETER COLLIER: — and you are going to go through these proceardsprocedures.
There does appear to be, from what you have justiomed, a fair degree of subjectivity in terms
of when that period commences, but then you didtimera benchmark. Is there a prescribed
process, as the chair has asked, before you readienchmark?

Ms Clissa: Yes. They would have the psychosocial report frmbably the clinic counsellor, the
psychometric assessment from the independent alipgychologist, the legal report that they have
each been to see a lawyer and understand exacty iwho be undertaken, and also a medical
report. Once all of those pathways —

Hon PETER COLLIER: And that is essential.
MsClissa: That is essential.

Hon PETER COLLIER: That is not negotiable.
MsClissa: No, it is not negotiable.

[11.10 am]

Mrs Midford: No, and the clinic coordinator would actuallgktiall those off, so there would be
somebody responsible for ensuring that that prolcappens.

Hon PETER COLLIER: And once all that is done, that is the benchnaaxdt then you start your
three months; is that what you are saying?

Ms Clissa: No, | think it goes to the panel and if the gaplays it, then | think the three-month
cooling-off period happens after that.

MrsMidford: Yes, that would be logical.

MsClissa: Yes, so it has to be approved, it has to getithefrom the panel basically.
Hon PETER COLLIER: So the panel is the benchmark.

MrsMidford: Yes, the panel is the end point, or the begmpioint.

Hon PETER COLLIER: That is all I am looking for. | hate to be ddflt; | am just trying to
find —

CHAIR: What is the panel going to do? | mean, you caroff to a lawyer and have a lawyer
explain your legal rights and declare at the enthefsession that you have had all your legal sight
explained; you do it with lots of things, financig@hnning and all sorts of things. | do not see any
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difficulty in prospective parents going off to amger and having all of the legal implications
explained to them.

MsClissa: Yes.

CHAIR: Equally, | do not see any difficulty in havingreedical assessment, because if someone is
medically unable to do what it is they are propgsia do based on the medical evidence, then
clearly the review panel would be required to sdyn sorry, we can’t allow you to proceed
because it's not going to happen anyway.” Thergoisg to be some really contentious stuff in a
psychosocial preparation.

MrsMidford: We would actually expect that most of them wogibdthrough.
CHAIR: They may well all go through but | suppose —

MrsMidford: We would not expect all of them to go through.

CHAIR: No, but if you are preparing a psychosocial prapon report —
MrsMidford: Yes.

CHAIR: So are you envisaging that someone might prefretereport and say, “I don’t think
these people understand it properly” or “I don’'inth these people are appropriate for this
procedure”?

MrsMidford: Yes.
CHAIR: And if they want to proceed, then you are gdmgay no.
MrsMidford: The review panel will say no.

Ms Clissa: Yes, and also the review panel might say nonfaw but might say, “We recommend
you go off and have some further counselling othierr kind of psychological support.”

CHAIR: | envisage people are going to say, “We’ve hadnselling. We understood everything.
We might have a different view of the world to @unsellor who provided that counselling. We
might have disagreements on a range of importantess about how to bring up children” or
whatever. | sort of envisage some serious potecuiadlict there.

MrsMidford: That would be fine if it was their procedure andnly involved them, but what we
are saying is that we have to look after the irstisref the person who is not there at the decision,
and that is the child, and if there are serioublgms —

CHAIR: And who has to do that; the people who wantetdhe parents?

Mrs Midford: All of the people need to consider that. The we&dperson has to consider, for
instance, whether the person is likely to surviybécause you do not want a child created —

CHAIR: | understand these aspects of it.

Ms Clissa: The big difference with this is it is a screani@mssessment. With IVF we do not have
that kind of same sort of screening. There is dap&ar doctors to refuse treatment or to say they
have concerns or whatever. But with this what wveeracommending is if the recommendation of
the independent psychologist says, “These peomaldh’t go through with it”, that that actually
has weight. So everybody who provides a reportttier panel must be recommending that it go
through; and if there are concerns, then it isauthe panel to look at whether they are going to
okay it on this round or whether they are goingay, “We want some more report or we want
some more information about this.”

Hon KATE DOUST: Can | just ask something about the panel? Ikthjau said that your
preference was to have an independent panel, agsegpo what is currently set out in the
directions, which would be that each clinic woutdyde their own panel.
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MrsMidford: We would actually anticipate that if more tharecaclinic were going to do this, and
it may be only one clinic that is prepared to ddiit if there were more than one clinic that they
would actually arrange to share an independent —

MsClissa: It is a panel set up by the clinic with indepentpeople on it, so it is not made up of all
people employed by the clinic. | think the direoBaalk about the sorts of people that would be on
the panel.

Hon KATE DOUST: They do. So you do not think it should be a paotlly separate to any of
the clinics and any of the potential conflicts mierests that they may have in providing the sef¥ic

MsClissa: Some of these people, | think, would be indepah@nough because they are not going
to be people that the clinic is going to be ablerwploy. | think it also says that the applicamts f
the panel need to be approved by the council. 8bithwhere the independence is. The clinic
cannot just decide who they want. They actuallyeha —

Hon KATE DOUST: So it still goes to the HRT council for the firigk-off.
MsClissa: Yes, of what the membership is of the panel.

Hon KATE DOUST: Okay.

MsClissa: That is where the independence is ascertaindtkeof

Hon KATE DOUST: | was just wondering how many people per yeauldaome to you in
Western Australia seeking counselling in relationa surrogacy arrangement; just a general
ballpark figure for indication.

MrsMidford: Probably virtually no-one.

Ms Rodino: | guess because people are aware of the fortatissof surrogacy—some are and

some are not—there is not a lot who will actualiix about surrogacy directly within the clinics. So

to my knowledge what is taking place is probablyrenon an informal basis, because the current
status is that it is not available, so why go ask about something? But for those who might
present, we will inform them where it is available.

Hon KATE DOUST: You have already said earlier that you actupiiyvided some counselling
for couples who have had to go interstate.

MrsMidford: That comes separately. So they do not preseydu because that comes from that
clinic. Sorry, maybe | misunderstood.

Hon KATE DOUST: No; that is all right.

MrsMidford: | was thinking of people coming to you spontarstp asking the questions.
MsClissa: So you are wanting to know what kind of numbeesare looking at?

CHAIR: Yes, what volume are you dealing with?

Hon KATE DOUST: Yes, because we are just getting different numbe

CHAIR: What does “small” mean?

Hon PETER COLLIER: Half a dozen?

MrsMidford: Perhaps six to 12 maybe.

MsClissa: A year; we are probably thinking maybe in thretfyear there might be a dozen people.
MrsMidford: Itis small; it is definitely small.

Hon KATE DOUST: A dozen in total?

MrsMidford: Yes, itis not large volumes.

CHAIR: lItis hard to anticipate, is it not?
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MsClissa: ltis.

CHAIR: From making something not legally availabledgdlly available, it is hard to guess.
MrsMidford: We know that there are people waiting.

CHAIR: Yes, we do too.

MrsMidford: How many exactly, we do not know.

Hon KATE DOUST: In your submission you talked about surrogacindpehe last resort. |
sometimes wonder whether, for people who are ko have a child and looking at this option,
it is because our avenues for adoption are soddniDoes that cut out for these people?

Mrs Midford: There is a very tiny number of local childreradable for adoption. It has been
plummeting; it is probably less than 10, unlesy i@ special needs. In fact it is probably adgsl
than 10 per annum in Western Australia, and inteonal adoption is extremely difficult to
organise. It is exceptionally costly, so it is veifficult for people. So certainly we would expect
surrogacy to be the last resort for a biologicaldctand in some cases people would see it asta las
resort because of the difficulties involved in abiiag a child.

Hon KATE DOUST: So if there is a greater ease of access viatadtofor these couples, do you
think they would be less inclined to want to resora surrogacy option?

Ms Clissa: My view is that people want to have a baby; theynt babies. There are not babies to
be adopted. | think, as Sue said, last time | hédaede were about six Western Australian babies
available. They do not want a special needs chilthey do not want an older child. There are
probably those available for adoption, but peopétactually to have a baby and preferably one
that they are biologically related to and, if thegn experience it, the birth itself would be the
bonus. | guess the people who would be accessimggaicy would be women who are born
without a uterus, women who have lost a uterus, @omho have difficulty carrying and have had
numerous losses. There are women in Western Aiastahlthe moment who have embryos in
storage who have accessed IVF, have lost theiusiteand now have these embryos that are
potentially their babies, and they are waitingdorrogacy because that to them is a potential, so—

[11.20 am]

Hon SALLY TALBOT: Can I clarify your response? You are using lasort in a special way.
MsClissa: Yes.

Hon SALLY TALBOT: Really, adoption would be the last resort.

MsClissa: If it was available.

CHAIR: It is practicality.

MsClissa: In this state it is really not an option.

MrsMidford: In fact in Australia, not just this state.

Ms Clissa: Australia—that is true.

Mrs Midford: In other countries adoption is much more readiilable. If you talk to people
from the United States about adoption in Australey are always shocked because adoption is
much easier in the United States, inter-country kooél adoption. In Australia, and certainly
Western Australia, you are exceptionally lucky @guyget an infant; you are exceptionally lucky to
hit the jackpot.

Hon KATE DOUST: You talked earlier about reasonable expensekinktit is also in your
submission. You talked about extending that ouh¢tude 12-month post-natal counselling. There
has been a lot of discussion in the Parliament taiwbiat is a reasonable expense and how far it
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should go. What in your view is a reasonable expendVhat sort of things should it include in
terms of your concerns in commodifying the childl @ommercialising the process?

MrsMidford: There are a number of components to that in teftise 12 months.

Hon KATE DOUST: That is a comment you have made. With everytleisg, what do you see as
a reasonable expense between parties?

Ms Rodino: Medical costs, psychological costs, ongoing psiadical care if the birth mother
experiences an adverse response, psychosis, rheattl and ongoing issues that are functional to
their involvement. | am a very strong advocate ostpatal mental health care and how it is
observed—my feeling is that it needs to be providetias not often been considered. Often the
medical side is considered—if there are any adveredical effects—but not the psychological
effects. The reason | suggested it be extendetléast 12 months minimum is the view that that is
when a lot of postnatal issues will occur by waylefinition of postnatal depression. It is verychar
to predict what might happen and that is where l#usslation can be tricky. Therefore, we should
say that medical expenses and certainly mentattheapenses—they are the two primary expenses
that come into play—cover at least the postnatabgdeof up to 12 months. The postnatal period
should be defined as up to 12 months rather tteioger time.

Ms Clissa: As part of the implications counselling and theyghosocial preparation, reasonable
expenses must be considered and discussed. Thdelm® an area where people agree. Say, for
instance, the surrogate is a working woman andptegnancy ends up being problematic and she
can no longer work, who pays for the loss of inc@rttes very important that that is discussed in
the implications counselling in the psychosocia@parations. The answer to that would not need to
be the same for everybody. Someone’s financiaagdo might be that it is covered and it is not an
issue, whereas it might involve a single birth wanweth a child and the lack of income would
create a problem. That might be a deciding factavhether she continues with the surrogacy. They
are the sorts of issues that need to be raisedibedawould be reasonable, if she was no longer
able to work as a result of being incapacitatedubh pregnancy, that that would be considered a
reasonable expense. However, they might reach r@emgnt where the birth mother says, “If | get
sick, | have my provisions for that and | don’t egpthat.” Another couple might say, “No, we
want to pay for anything adverse that is associaféidthis pregnancy.” Reasonable expenses must
be considered by all the parties because it might.v

MrsMidford: It needs to be considered before —
CHAIR: It must be contemplated by all the counsellingg#s.

Ms Clissa: These are the things that people do not discodglaat is why third parties, having a
counsellor, bring up these issues—what will hapged what if the child is disabled? In terms of
reasonable expenses, that is where it is important.

CHAIR: That concludes our hearing with you today. Thgok very much. We appreciate the
evidence you have given. You will receive a copythefHansard and you will be asked to make
any corrections to it and send it back.

Hearing concluded at 11.25 am



